
 

1 
 

Town of Youngsville 

Board of Commissioners 
P. O. Box 190 / 134 US 1A South 

Youngsville, NC  27596 
(919) 925-3401 – Town Hall / (919) 925-3402 – Fax 

CustomerService@TownofYoungsville.org   
www.townofyoungsville.org 

      
 
 

MINUTES  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
DECEMBER 10, 2020 

7:00PM 
 

REGULAR MEETING 

YOUNGSVILLE COMMUNITY HOUSE 

 
Mayor Fonzie Flowers called the Board Meeting of the Town of Youngsville Board of 
Commissioners to order at 7:00pm.  Commissioner Hedlund gave invocation.  In 
attendance were Commissioners Cat Redd, Terry Hedlund, Scott Brame, Larry Wiggins 
and Joseph Johnson.  Others in attendance were Town Administrator Phillip Cordeiro, 
Town Clerk / Tax Collector Emily Hurd, Police Chief J.W. Whitley, Finance Officer Kari 
Patton-Motluck (teleconference), Attorney Michael Cohen (teleconference), Parks and 
Recreation Director Andrew Smith, and ABC Board Chairman Rick Houser.   Members of 
the Youngsville Police Department included Captain Brandon Lemons, Captain Jahanzeb 
Magsi, Sergeant Thomas Allen, Officer Terry Pearce, Officer Elizabeth McAdams, Officer 
Brittany Strother, Officer Jason Steinbrunner, Cadet Regina Andranowska, Cadet 
Ladrevion Preyer Richardson, and Administrative Specialist Ashlie Pippin.   
 
MOTION: TO APPROVE THE AGENDA  
 
The motion was made by Commissioner Wiggins and was seconded by Commissioner 
Hedlund.  The motion passed unanimously.   
 
The next item on the agenda was recognition of Youngsville Police Department Personnel.  
Chief Whitley thanked everyone for attending, including families and friends, to honor the 
award recipients.  He first introduced two members of Youngsville Police Department’s 
Cadet Program; Regina Andranowska and Ladrevion Preyer Richardson.  Chief Whitley 
stated they also wanted to recognize two retirees; Robert Morris and Joseph Kimball.  Chief 
Whitley stated he just passed his one-year anniversary on December 2nd.  To the entire 
Youngsville Police Department and retirees Morris and Kimball, Chief Whitley stated he 
owed them a debt of gratitude for everything they have done for him over the past year. 
 



 

2 
 

Captain Lemons stated he has only been with the Youngsville Police Department for a 
short time and was trained by Assistant Chief Kimball.  He stated he appreciated all the 
help he was given when he was hired on.  Captain Lemons explained the Cadet Program 
and stated the Youngsville Police Department would sponsor Cadets Andranowska and 
Preyer Richardson at the Academy and would help train them to Youngsville standards.  
During the application process, candidates had to write a paper and both cadets were ahead 
of the rest of the candidates.   
 
Captain Lemons stated Cadet Andranowska was born in Poland, moved to New York, then 
Raleigh, and has now settled in Youngsville.  He stated Cadet Andranowska was 
outstanding during the interview process.   
 
Captain Lemons stated Cadet Preyer Richardson was born in Alabama and has 47 credit 
hours towards a degree in homeland security from Alabama A&M and University of 
Alabama - Birmingham.  He joined the Marines, worked to gain the rank of Corporal and 
worked as the Administrative Specialist, Assistant Non-Commission Officer in charge of 
the shop.  Cadet Preyer Richardson left the Marines with an honorable discharge and was 
awarded merits; Good Conduct Medal, National Defense Service Medal, Local War on 
Terrorism, and three Letters of Appreciation.  Captain Lemons stated approximately 
twenty-two candidates applied but these two rose to the top during the interview process.   
 
Captain Lemons presented Officer Robert Morris the Key to the Town and read the 
corresponding Certificate.   

 



 

3 
 

 
Captain Lemons also presented Officer Morris his Award for Criminal Justice - 
Intermediate Certificate.  He explained the process, noting Officer Morris had over 640 
extra hours of training to receive the Intermediate Certificate.   
 
Chief Whitley issued Officer Morris his retirement badge, ID, and service weapon.  He 
thanked Officer Morris for everything he has done for the Youngsville Police Department, 
noting it was appreciated. 
 
Officer Morris thanked everyone at the Youngsville Police Department and those in 
attendance for their support.  After the military, Officer Morris stated he followed his 
dream and love of the outdoors by joining NC Wildlife.  Then he ventured towards Raleigh.  
He stated it was not always easy, but it made him a better person.  Times are changing and 
it’s tough to be in law enforcement, but he told the Cadets to believe in themselves, know 
they’re doing it for the right reasons, and follow their heart.  Officer Morris stated the 
Youngsville Police Department has a great support system and wished them the best of 
luck.   
 
Captain Lemons presented Assistant Chief Joseph Kimball the Key to the Town and read 
the corresponding Certificate.   
 

 
 



 

4 
 

Chief Whitley issued Assistant Chief Kimball his retirement badge, ID, and service 
weapon.  He thanked Assistant Chief Kimball for everything he has done for the 
Youngsville Police Department, noting it was appreciated. 
 
Assistant Chief Kimball thanked Mayor Flowers and the Board for giving him the 
opportunity to grow.  He stated he has had a great career and it was a joy to be in the 
Youngsville Community.  Assistant Chief Kimball noted Youngsville has a great Chief of 
Police.  He stated he appreciated all the opportunities Youngsville has given him and 
couldn’t ask for more. 
 
The next item on the agenda was a Public Hearing.  The Public Hearing was for the order 
to permanently close the northern portion of Hillsboro Street and a portion of Trogden 
Avenue.  Mayor Flowers opened the Public Hearing at 7:17pm.  Cordeiro polled all 
teleconference participants and there were no comments from the public.  Hurd stated no 
one had registered to speak.  Mayor Flowers closed the Public Hearing at 7:19pm. 
 
The next item on the agenda was citizens’ comments.  Due to the social distancing 
restriction for the COVID-19 Virus, citizens attended via web/teleconference.   
 
Hurd stated one person had signed up but based on the subject, she felt Mrs. Coffman had 
meant to sign up for the Planning Board Meeting instead.  Mrs. Coffman was not on the 
teleconference call. 
 
Cordeiro polled all teleconference participants and there were no comments from the 
public.  Hurd stated no one else had registered to speak.   
 
The next item on the agenda was the approval of the Consent Agenda.  The Consent 
Agenda consisted of: 

 Minutes from the Regular Board Meeting – November 5, 2020 
 Finance Report 
 Parks and Recreation Report 
 Planning and Zoning Report 
 Police Department Report 
 Tax Collector’s Report 

 
MOTION: TO APPROVE THE CONSENT AGENDA  
 
The motion was made by Commissioner Brame and was seconded by Commissioner 
Johnson.  Commissioner Wiggins inquired about the debt issuance on the Finance Report.  
He felt the loan amount was excessive.  Cordeiro explained there was a typo and the loan 
amount was for $2.7 million.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 
The next item on the agenda was Old Business.  The first item under Old Business was a 
Resolution ordering the permanent closing of the norther portion of Hillsboro Street and a 
portion of Trogden Avenue.  Mayor Flowers noted the Board had discussed this previously. 
 



 

5 
 

MOTION: APPROVE RESOLUTION ORDER TO PERMANENTLY CLOSE 
THE NORTHERN PORTION OF HILLSBORO STREET AND A 
PORTION OF TROGEN AVENUE 

 
The motion was made by Commissioner Wiggins and was seconded by Commissioner 
Hedlund.  The motion passed unanimously.   
 
The second item under Old Business was the presentation of the Certificate of Sufficiency 
for Annexation Petition 2020-4 – Youngsville Academy Charter School, Inc – Hicks Road.  
Hurd stated Klinger helped to certify that the annexation petition was in order.  The 
annexation petition included the proper signatures for the owners.  The next step is the 
Public Hearing to be scheduled for next month.   
 
The third item under Old Business was a Resolution fixing the date of a Public Hearing on 
the question of annexation pursuant to NCGS 160A-31 – Annexation Petition 2020-4 – 
Youngsville Academy Charter School, Inc – Hicks Road.   
 
MOTION: RESOLUTION FIXING DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON QUESTION 

OF ANNEXATION PURSUANT TO NCGS 160A-31 - ANNEXATION 
PETITION 2020-4 – YOUNGSVILLE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL, 
INC – HICKS ROAD – JANUARY 14, 2021 

 
The motion was made by Commissioner Hedlund and was seconded by Commissioner 
Brame.  The motion passed unanimously.   
 
The next item on the agenda was New Business.  The first item under New Business was 
to approve the supplemental agreement with NC DOT for additional funding of the Main 
Street Improvements Project (MSIP).  Cordeiro explained the supplemental agreement was 
related to the utility work by Franklin County Public Utilities (FCPU).  The engineering 
estimate increased slightly, and it needs to be shown in the agreement with NC DOT.  
Cordeiro reminded the Board that FCPU will pay for the utility work.  He explained the 
Town will receive the funds and noted FCPU will reimburse the Town.  This will increase 
the federal funding to cover 50% of the additional costs while FCPU will pay the remaining 
portion.  These changes will have no financial impact on the Town.   
 
MOTION: TO APPROVE THE SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH NC 

DOT FOR ADDITIONAL FUNDING OF THE MAIN STREET 
IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 

 
The motion was made by Commissioner Wiggins and was seconded by Commissioner 
Hedlund.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 
The second item under New Business was to appoint Bobby Ayscue to the Youngsville 
Planning Board.  Mayor Flowers noted Mr. Ayscue has a history working with roadways 
and would be a great addition to the Planning Board.  
 
MOTION: APPOINT BOBBY AYSCUE TO THE YOUNGSVILLE PLANNING 

BOARD  



 

6 
 

 
The motion was made by Commissioner Brame and was seconded by Commissioner 
Wiggins.  The motion passed unanimously.   
 
The next item on the agenda was Reports and Other Business.  Mayor Flowers wanted to 
commend everyone in the room for the stellar work they did to make the Christmas Parade 
a success.  He stated they worked hard to make sure it was done safely.  Mayor Flowers 
thanked the Board for standing behind their commitment; they never wavered and never 
backed down.  He stated the Police Department did an amazing job, noting this was the 
safest he has felt at a parade.  Mayor Flowers also wanted to thank those nationwide that 
donated to the Shop with a Cop program.  He noted R Smith, A Smith and Hurd did a great 
job with the parade.  Mayor Flowers also wanted to note that Cordeiro worked hard to keep 
the parade going, which took a lot of hard work and dedication to keep on top of things.  
He thanked everyone again.   
 
Cordeiro thanked the Board as well, noting their support, resources, and time allocated 
allowed the Town team to be what it was today.  Because of this, the Town team was able 
to accomplish making the Christmas Parade a positive experience.  Cordeiro thanked the 
Board for their support.   
 
As previously discussed, Cordeiro noted the scope of the MSIP has changed and NC DOT 
is reviewing the utility portion of the work.  Once they have finished reviewing the changes, 
the Town will have to re-advertise.  Cordeiro stated he hoped to have that completed by 
the end of the month and re-advertise by the end of January or early February.  Based on 
this timeline, construction will begin thirty to sixty days afterwards.   
 
Cordeiro noted the Public Works facility was going well.  They will start breaking ground 
and clearing trees within the next couple of weeks.  Designs for both the Public Works 
facility and the Town Hall renovations are also going well. 
 
Commissioner Wiggins stated he understood that Youngsville was getting negative 
comments regarding the Christmas Parade but noted people he knew had been diagnosed 
with COVID-19 though they had not been in Youngsville.  He stated that COVID-19 could 
be caught anywhere.   
 
Commissioner Brame also wanted to thank everyone involved with the Christmas Parade.  
He understood how difficult holding events were in any year but even more stressful this 
year.  Commissioner Brame stated the Parade Committee and volunteers did an excellent 
job.  He noted Youngsville received kudos for staying strong and having the parade from 
outside of the county, including a County Commissioner from a nearby county.   
 
Patton-Motluck read the Finance Report.   
 



 

7 
 

 
 
Mayor Flowers read the Youngsville Fire Department Report. 
 

 
 
R Smith stated the Christmas decorations had been installed on Main Street but there were 
electrical issues.  The installation company has done a follow up visit and replaced the 
burnt-out bulbs.  He noted the original installation did not go properly.  R Smith explained 
Duke Progress did not have power to the decorations on some of the poles.  Currently, there 
are only four working and hopefully the remaining six will be fixed shortly.  R Smith 
suggested turning the decorations towards the sidewalk instead of leaving them hanging 
over the road to prevent future damage.   



 

8 
 

 
R Smith stated he was working with FCPU regarding the septic tanks on Town properties.  
If the Town has been billed inappropriately, he will work with them to see if we can get 
some money back.   
 
Mayor Flowers stated residents have noticed the issues with the Christmas decorations and 
he appreciated R Smith working to get the problem resolved.   
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Cordeiro explained that Klinger recently had surgery and would be working remotely for 
the next few weeks.  He stated Planning and Zoning will have a Public Hearing in January. 

 
 



 

9 
 

 
 
 
 
Chief Whitley noted the Shop with a Cop had raised over $13,000.  A testament to the 
support Youngsville garnered nationwide.  He stated compliments were received from all 
over the country, including a retired NYC Police Officer, thanking Youngsville for doing 
what was right.   
 
Chief Whitley stated the Shop with a Cop was sponsoring ten children and will now be 
able to reach out to other families that couldn’t be in attendance for the actual shopping.  
They will get the children’s wish list and deliver the presents the week of Christmas.  Chief 
Whitley stated this was one of the most rewarding experiences by far.  He thanked the 
Board for their support of the Youngsville Police Department and stated he was happy to 
be a part of the Youngsville team.  
 
 
 
 



 

10 
 

 

 



 

11 
 

 
Attorney Cohen echoed what everyone said about the Christmas parade.  He stated it was 
well planned and executed.  Attorney Cohen noted how well Cordeiro handled the behind 
the scenes challenges.  He stated it was a job well done by Cordeiro, Mayor Flowers, and 
the Board.   
 
Hurd thanked everyone and noted that it couldn’t be done without the multitude of 
volunteers that helped make it an amazing day.  She thanked Faith Baptist Church (Aubrey 
Cooper was their contact), Covenant Hope Church (Ryan Phillips, Cody Evans and others) 
who not only helped with the Parade but also handing out flyers to the residents, the 
Kiwanis Club (Terry Hedlund, David Jerose, Bert Woodburn and Tassie McGannon), 
Youngsville Area Business Association, Santa and Mrs. Clause, the Police Department and 
Parks and Recreation Department.  Hurd noted that things went very smooth at the staging 
area this year.  The Parade Committee will have a follow up meeting in January.   
 
Hurd announced the winners of the Christmas Decorating Contest.   
 

 
 
Hurd stated there would be three new annexations to be presented during the January Board 
Meeting.   
 



 

12 
 

 
 
Cordeiro wanted to mention the other law enforcement agencies that helped during the 
Christmas Parade, noting Oxford Police Department, Creedmoor Police Department, NC 
State Highway Patrol, and the NC National Guard.  Cordeiro stated Youngsville 
appreciated their support.  He stated you can tell a person’s character when things don’t go 
well, and these agencies came to our aid when we needed them. 
 
Cordeiro noted Pastor Bert Woodburn of the Kiwanis Club was doing well, noting he had 
an illness not related to COVID-19.   
 
Cordeiro stated the video for the Christmas Parade was on the Town’s website.  He noted 
the Mayor released a message on YouTube just before tonight’s Board Meeting as well. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:44pm upon a motion made by Commissioner Wiggins, 
seconded by Commissioner Brame, and approved unanimously.   
 
 


